
 

Today in Columbus History: 

On February 21, 1878, the Columbus Daily Enquirer-Sun ran an ad for “Bonny Doon Berkshires.” 
William Bruce was selling the pigs at the Bonny Doon Stock Farm, not far from town. The Times and 
Enquirer-Sun both ran lengthy articles singing the praises of the farm. Bruce started the farm around 
1875 and imported the pigs from England. He was trying to reduce the amount of bacon brought 
from the “West” by improving the yield obtained from the local livestock. Berkshires were the first 
pigs to have their pedigrees recorded and Bruce mentions the bloodlines in his ad. The farm also 
specialized in sweet potatoes, pea-hay and other animal fodder. 

Numerous references to the farm give its location as a mile and a half northeast of Columbus on 
Talbotton Road. Ads for the property say that 15th Avenue passes through it. This puts Bonny Doon 
near the present-day Talbotton Road Park and Ride. The name of the farm comes from the song 
“The Banks O’ Doon” by the Scots poet Robert Burns. Two of the three versions of the song he wrote 
mention the banks “o’bonnie doon” in the first line.  

William Bruce and his brother Henry were born in Aberdeen, Scotland. According to the 1878 Sholes’ 
directory of the city of Columbus, both brothers worked as bookkeepers, Henry at Eagle and Phenix 
Manufacturing and William at Eagle and Phenix Savings Bank. Henry Bruce married Henrietta Patten 
and raised his family in Columbus. William Bruce married Mary Louisa Jones, daughter of Col. Jack 
Jones and Mary Louisa Leonard in 1875. She was the granddaughter of Seaborn Jones and Vande 
Van Leonard. 

The main house on the Bonny Doon farm, a mansion built by Mary Louisa’s father, caught fire, and 
burned to the ground on June 21, 1878. This was the first of several misfortunes to befall the family. 
William discovered the fire in the cellar at 3 o’clock in morning. The newspaper reported that an 
incendiary was to blame. Bruce vowed to rebuild but put the farm up for sale within a month. It must 
not have sold as it was up for auction by September 1878. Thomas J. Granberry eventually bought 
the property. The Bonny Doon farm was subdivided and sold it off in lots in 1890. 

The Bruce family left Columbus for North Carolina near the end of 1879 with their daughter Mary 
Louise. Their other daughter, Marion Leonard, possibly Mary’s twin, remained behind in Linwood 
Cemetery, having died in January of 1879. Another daughter, Bessie, born in North Carolina during 
late 1879 or early 1880 drowned in 1881. The family moved to Wellsville, New York by late 1886 and 
then to Norfolk, Virginia by 1899.  

Another child, Caroline Benning Bruce died in Norfolk and was sent back to New York for burial in 
1899. The same year, their beautiful new house in Norfolk burned to the ground. The mother, Mary 
Louisa died unexpectedly while in the hospital in 1903. The family shipped her remains to Columbus 
for burial in the Garrard-Leonard lot in Linwood Cemetery. She was survived by her other seven 
children. 

William Bruce relocated to British Columbia, Canada and remarried to Christine Lumsden in 1904. The 
couple had at least two more children in Canada. William died in 1926 at Victoria, British Columbia. 

Compiled by Daniel A. Bellware, Muscogee Genealogical Society 

Clipping from Georgia Historic Newspapers (GALILEO). 



Our weekly snippets of Columbus history are usually based on a few days-worth of searching through 
the most popular sources for Muscogee County history. Meant to inspire readers to explore more 
about Columbus history, they are not exhaustive dissertations on the topic and may contain mistakes. 
If you have corrections or additional information, feel free to share them with the group.  

 

From the Columbus Daily Enquirer-Sun, February 21, 1878, 
https://gahistoricnewspapers.galileo.usg.edu/. 

 

 

From the Columbus Daily Enquirer-Sun, November 15, 1877, 
https://gahistoricnewspapers.galileo.usg.edu/. 

 



  

Mary Louisa Jones Bruce, wife of William Wallace Bruce and granddaughter of Vande Van Leonard 
and Seaborn Jones, from https://www.findagrave.com/memorial/118155949/mary-louisa-bruce 

 

From the Columbus Daily Enquirer-Sun, July 18, 1878, https://gahistoricnewspapers.galileo.usg.edu/. 



 From the Columbus Daily Enquirer-Sun, Sept. 29, 1878, 
https://gahistoricnewspapers.galileo.usg.edu/. 



 

Ads from Columbus Daily Enquirer-Sun, June 21, 1890, https://gahistoricnewspapers.galileo.usg.edu/. 

 

Bruce brothers in Sholes’ Directory of the City of Columbus, 1878, https://dlg.galileo.usg.edu/chat/ccd/pdfs/dir-
columbus1878.pdf 

 


